
Dear Tracey, 

Thank you for your email and invitation to submit comments in respect of exam doc ED041. 

I write on behalf of MF Freeman in respect of their land interests at proposed allocation MD2: 

Portland Street/North Place. This follows our previous submissions to the Cheltenham Plan Main 

Modifications (CPMM) Consultation which sought deletion of the second bullet point to MD2 in 

respect of health and community uses.  

The Council’s response in ED041 demonstrating that the requirement for health and community 

uses is simply a hangover from a previous planning permission, rather than arising from any 

demonstrable need, is acknowledged and endorsed. Furthermore, the Council’s suggested that the 

second bullet point referencing these uses can be deleted from draft allocation policy is supported. 

As detailed in our submission the Main Modifications Consultation there is ample provision of such 

uses in the immediate vicinity of the site and no demonstrable need for these uses.  

In addition however, the Council should recognise that a predominant residential use on the site, 

increases significantly the site capacity. In our previous representations to the Main Modifications 

Consultation, we highlighted that the proposed allocation for 147 dwellings was very conservative 

and that the site could yield some 300 dwellings.  It is unclear how the Council has arrived at the 

allocation of 147 dwellings and whether this recognised the site’s suitability for higher density 

apartment style development given the town centre location. Clearly the allocation number should 

be revised upwards in light of the suggested modification in ED041 to remove any requirement for 

health and community uses.  

The latest masterplan for the site illustrates 362 residential units and an office block of circa 40,000 

ft2, whilst maintaining high standards of design appropriate to the site context. It is proposed that 

the allocation policy should support or be broadly agreeable with this scale of development. 

I trust this representation is of assistance and please do not hesitate to contact me should the 

Inspector require any further clarification.  

Kind Regards, 

Conor  



Dear Tracey 

Thank you for consulting us on this matter. We have reviewed document ED041 and I can confirm 

that the Environment Agency has no further comments to make. 

Kind regards, 

Ruth. 

  



Hello Tracey, 

Thank you for giving Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) the opportunity to comment on the 

above matter.  I have the following officer comments to make. 

MM019 - ‘Policy H2: Land Allocated for Mixed-Use Development’ – this is supported. 

I have been asked to mention that an application has been made to stop up the footpath traversing 

the proposed secondary school allocation site, shown as plot ‘O’ on page 4 of the Council's response 

(ED041).  A Public Inquiry to consider the application will be held in the near future.   

If you require any further information please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Thank you 

Rob Niblett 

  



Dear Tracey 

Our reference 307081 

For the avoidance of doubt - Natural England has no comments to submit on the further information 

requested by the inspector. 

Kind regards 

Antony 

Antony Muller  

Lead Adviser 

  



Dear Tracey 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to respond to the Inspectors request for further information and the 
Council’s response to this. We raise a direct response to table 8 set out in the MM responses. 
 
The last two rows of this table suggest that the employment requirement set out in the JCS for 
Cheltenham Borough is 1ha. There is no such policy reference suggesting that Cheltenham should 
only provide 1ha. The only reference that has been made to 1ha within the JCS is found at paragraph 
3.2.21 which references the Economic Update Note of February 2016. This simply suggests that ‘at 
that time’ there was an indicative availability of B-Class land within Cheltenham of approximately 
1ha. It certainly provides no reference that Cheltenham Borough should only find 1ha of 
employment land and that calculation was a snapshot of what was potentially available in 2016. 
 
The main policy reference to the amount of employment land that needs to be provided in the JCS 
area over the plan period is found in criterion 9 of Policy SP2 which sets out that the JCS will make 
provision for at least 192ha of B class employment land. Therefore it follows that an assessment of 
the strategic employment requirements, commitments and completions should have been updated 
and undertaken to ensure that the full complement of 192ha was provided by the JCS authorities 
during the Plan period. 
 
At this point in time it is clear from all the emerging local plans that there is still a residual 
requirement of 40.9ha still to be found in the JCS area and accordingly there remains a role of the 
Cheltenham Local Plan in conjunction with the other JCS authorities to make provision for additional 
employment land within their district plans in order for them to be robust and achieve sustainable 
development. 
 
Table 8 also suggest that the Cheltenham Plan will make new employment allocations amounting to 
7.35ha. Regrettably after a detailed analysis of all of these sites, it is clear that none constitute new 
employment land and the Council has already conceded in two cases that they have previously been 
assessed as commitments. The Council therefore continues to use sites that they have previously 
accounted for and therefore depriving the local economy of much needed employment land. 
 
Table 8 should therefore be amended to the following: 
 

Table 8: Summary of Requirement and Supply for Cheltenham Borough (as of June 2019)  
Housing requirement for Cheltenham Borough 
(2011-2031) (as agreed in the JCS)  

10,917 dwellings  

 
Total supply of housing (2011-2031)  

 
11,632030 dwellings  
(The Cheltenham Plan allocates 113 dwellings 
more than the requirement to allow for flexibility 
in site delivery over the plan period)  

Supply being met through strategic allocations 
(allocated in the JCS)  

5,385 dwellings  

Supply being met through allocations in the 
Cheltenham Plan  

1,252236 dwellings  

Unplanned supply (being met through windfall) 
(to April 2018)  

4,995409 dwellings  

5-Year Housing Land Supply (correct at date of 

publication)  

45.6 years  

Residual employment requirement still to be 
found in the JCS area: (2011-2031) (as identified in 

 
40.9ha  



the JCS)  

Employment supply from new allocations in the 
Cheltenham Plan  

0ha (total site area)  

 
Yours sincerely 
 
GFirst LEP Construction and Infrastructure Business Group 
  



Dear Tracey 

Thank you for your email below regarding the Council’s response to the Inspector’s further 

information request regarding the Cheltenham Local Plan Proposed Main Modifications 

consultation. 

I can confirm that Highways England has no comments to make. 

Kind regards 

Oliver Lowe 

  



Dear Tracey 

Thank you for this. 

I cannot find any comment or acknowledgement of the comments that we raised late last year  

concerning the continued omission of a strategy to manage climate change and flooding  in the main 

modifications. 

Is it possible that I have missed a document in the examination library where there is evidence that 

the council have considered and commented on this matter? 

Please advise. 

Kind regards 

 

For Cheltenham Flood and Drainage Panel 

  



Dear Tracey, 

Please find our response to EDO41 on behalf of Robert Hitchins Ltd. 

Kind regards, 

Sarah Hamilton-Foyn 

Senior Director 














